
          
 
 

TO: House Democratic Members and Interested Parties 

FROM: Rep. Joseph Markosek, Chairman     

SUBJECT: Gaming Local Share Analysis 

DATE: October 25, 2016 

Gaming Local Share Review 
The Pennsylvania Supreme Court forced the General Assembly to revisit the 2004 law that prescribes how slot 
machine revenue is assessed when, on Sept. 28, it decided that the commonwealth’s local share assessment on 
licensed casinos is unconstitutional. 

Mount Airy Casino in Mt. Pocono (Northeast PA) argued that the current local share assessment for 
municipalities – of two percent of gross terminal revenue or $10 million, whichever is greater – violated 
Pennsylvania’s Uniformity Clause.  

Since no casino currently generates more than $500 million in slot machine gross terminal revenue, all Category 
1 and Category 2 casinos are assessed the $10 million minimum for the municipal portion of the local share 
assessment, except for Philadelphia casinos, resulting in a non-uniform effective rate as a percentage of gross 
terminal revenue (the gray line in the chart below illustrates). 

The Supreme Court opinion (No. 34 EM 2015) found merit in the argument that the municipal local share 
portion of the current law fails to meet the constitutional requirements of the Uniformity Clause. Working to 
avoid the appearance of making a policy decision, the court stayed its decision for 120 days to give the General 
Assembly time to correct the issue. 
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Current Local Share Assessments 

 Municipal Local Share Assessment: 2 percent of slot machine gross terminal revenue, or $10 million annually, 
whichever is greater, for all Category 1 and 2 casinos outside the City of Philadelphia.  
 Category 3 casinos (the resort casinos, Valley Forge and Nemacolin) are only subject to the 2 percent rate 

and are not subject to the $10 million minimum.  

 Philadelphia casinos are only assessed 4 percent of gross terminal revenue at the county level and are not 
subject to the $10 million minimum. 

 County Local Share Assessment: 2 percent of slot machine gross terminal revenue assessed on all casinos 
outside the City of Philadelphia.  

 Casinos within Philadelphia are assessed 4 percent of gross terminal revenie (since the city and county 
are coterminous) 

 Table Games Local Share Assessment: 2 percent of gross table games revenue. 

 Distribution of Local Assessments: The distribution varies by casino as established in Title 4, Section 1403(c) 
(for slot machine revenue) and Section 13A63 for table games revenue. 

 Some cities are subject to an upper limit on the total amount of proceeds received in a year (i.e. 50 
percent of their 2003/04 budget), and any additional revenue is then distributed to the host county. 

What’s at Stake 
The recent court decision only affects the municipal portion of local share assessments for category one and two 
casinos. Also, the court decision only affects local share assessments on slot machine revenues. The county local 
share assessment is uniform and remains unaffected, and local share assessments on table games revenue 
remains unaffected by the court decision, as well, because they are all uniform rates. The only non-uniform levy 
was the municipal slots revenue local share. 

If policy makers wish to maintain the revenue stream to municipalities, they will need to change the assessment 
methodology.  

Total local share assessments on slot machine revenues in 2015 were worth $142.7 million. Of that, the county 
local share assessments were $50.6 million, and municipal assessments were $92.1 million. If the category one 
and two casinos (outside of Philadelphia) were only subject to the 2 percent municipal assessment and not the 
$10 million minimum, those casinos would have saved $48.5 million in 2015. 

In the table below, the yellow area represents a 2 percent assessment, and the green area represents the 
amount needed for category one and two casinos to true-up to the $10 million assessment (Note, the $10 
million minimum currently does not apply to Philadelphia casinos, which is Sugarhouse). 

This chart also shows the lack of uniformity of effective tax rates as compared to gross terminal revenue. 
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House Appropriations Committee (D) 

    Miriam A. Fox, Executive Director Wendy Lewis, Senior Budget Analyst Mark Shade, Communications Director 

Data provided by the Department of Revenue. 
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